
PJJ,!. I 

t UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNC!L 
1340th meeting 

Monday,· 3 August 1964 
at . 3.20 p.m. Thirty-seventh session 

·oFFICIAL RECORDS 
• •: '. 1.. 

PALAIS DES NATIONS,. GE~VA 

--·-------------------------------------------------------------~--~--~----._-
CONTENTS 

Agenda items 11 and 12: 
Activities in the field of industrial development 
Training of national technical personnel for the acceler­

ated indUstrialization of developing countries 

Page 

General debate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . • 179 

President : Sir Ronald WALKER (Australia) 

Present: 

Representatives of the following States, members of 
the. Council: Algeria, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Chile, 
Colombia, Czechoslovakia, Ecuador, France, India, Iraq, 
Japan, Lux.embrJurg, Senegal, Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and 
Northern Ireland, United States of America, Yugoslavia. 

Representatives of the following States, additional 
members of the sessional Committees: Cameroon, Ghana, 
Indonesia, Iran, Italy, Mexico, United Arab Republic, 
United Republic of Tanganyika and Zanzibar. 

Observers for the following Member States: Brazil, 
Bulgaria, Central ft..frican Republic, China, Greece, 
Ireland, Pakistan, Romania, Sweden, Ukrainian Soviet 
Socialist Republic. 

Observers for the following. non-member States: 
Federal Republic of Germany, Holy See. 

Representatives of the following specialized agencies; 
International Labour Organisatk,n, Food and Agricul­
ture Org.mization of the Unitet! Nations, United l~ations 
Educational, Scientific and · C:-ultural Organization, Inter­
nation ll Bank for Reconstruction and Development, 
. ,; r <>rid Health Organization, World Meteorological Orga-
nization. · 

The representative of the International Atomic Energy 
Agency. 

AGENDA ITEMS 11 AND lZ 

Activiti~s in the field of industrial development 
~ (E/3869, E/3921 and Add.l) 

Training of national technical personnel for tbe acceler­
ated industrialization of developing countries (E/3901 
and: Corrr.l and Add.J> Add.2 and Corr.1) 

GENERAL DEBATE 

1. The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider 
items li and 12 of the agenda t6gether,. Under item 11, 

. ' 

the Council had before it a report · by the· ·Secretary .. 
General on international and regional symposia on indq.s~ 
trial development (E/3921 and Add. 1) and the report of 
the Committee for Industrial Development on i~ fqurth 
session (E/3869) which contained in chapter VII draft 
resolutions I and II for action by the Council; draft 
resolution II had been the S'!Jbject .of a ;recom.menc~ation 
by the United Nations Confet:ence on Trade~and Developa 
ment (see E/CONF.46/l39; annex A.II{,l). Under item 12, 
the Council had before it a report by the S~~retary­
General on the training of natio~al technical personnel 
for accelerated industrialization of developing COQntries 
(E/3901 and Corr.l and Add.1, Add.2 and Corr.l). 

2. Mr. ABDEL·RAHMAN (Unitea Nations Commis· 
sioner for Industrial Development) said that .at its foUrth 
session the Committee for Industrial Development. had, 
as in previous years, reviewed the activities of the.United 
Nations Centre for Industrial Development and had given 
special attention to the progranunes of technical <:o­
operation financed through the United Nations regular 
programme, EPTA and the Special Fund. · It had also 
considered, as a separate item~ the . participation of the 
Centre for Industrial Development in the preparations 
for the United Nations Conference on Trade and Develop~ 
ment and had reviewed the activities of the organizations 
of the United Nations family in "the field· of industrial 
development. As the Committee's report contained a 
detailed account of its deliberations he would confine 
himself to commenting on the three resolutions 'Yhich 'it 
had adopted. 

3. The Secretary-General had reported to the Co:mt'nittee 
the result of consultations he had held pursuant:' to 
General Assembly resolution ·1940 (XVIIQ, · and· ··the 
Committee, .after careful deliberation, had ·adopted its 
resolution 1 (IV) (see E/3869, para. 118) in which it had 
welcomed the suggestion of holding symposia on indus­
trial development. It had requested the Secretary-General 
to submit to; ·the Council proposals concerning the 
organization of the .symposia ancl· the subjects· to be·dis• 
cussed as well as budgetary estimates for their. adequate 
finE~-ncing:The Committee' had suggested that the Centre 
for Industrial Development should assume responsibility 
for the preparatory work .for the symposia, . and · bad 
invited the regional ooonomic commission~ and.··· speci­
alized agencies and the' Governments of Member rstates 
to co-operate with the Centre in that ·work. The :Com­
mittee had assigned high .. priority to the undenalQng of 
surveys and studies by the Qoverntrier:tts of the developing 
countries, . and had ili.::~cted the Centre. :for Indu~tnal 
Development to provide any assistance that :tniglit· b~ 
required in the preparation of those stirveys and studie·s. 

' ' ' - . "'•.' 

179 
E/S.R.l340 



'"~~~,•·-••~•-•"•'·'"""~'""-C"7~•n~.-.--,,..!>""'T "!' '""""'"'" • f .iljrlfW'""*iT\fWA I 4 k ¢ j PW ¢£ H(. diJQA h¢fi'P414 j )1$. J $ lA. j 4J. %4 a X::: Q 
180 Economic and Social Connell - Thirty-seventh session 

4. A . summary of replies of Governments . of' M:¢mber 
States and a tentative estimate of the budgetary require­
lD.ents fot the :regional and international symposia, as 
well as proposals in respect of items that might be dis­
cussed, were contained in the Secretary-General's report 
(E/3921 and Add.1). In the provisional summary of 
financial implications of actions of the Coun~il (B/3941), 
the Secretary-General also referred to the international 
and regional symposia on industrial development, 'indicat­
ing that revised budgetary estimates would have·· to· be 
Sl~!unitted to the General Assembly at its nineteenth 
session· following further consultation with the regional 
economic connnissions and in the light of the discussions 
of the Council. It was considered essential that the ·pro­
grarrune ~? symposia be eoilsidered and budgeted for as 
orie ·self~~unl::rlued · integrate4 activity; the. ·individual 
symposia should ·not 'be regarded ·as separate projects, 
but as parts of one opetation which would be carried out 
in stages. 

v • 

5. The industrial symposia, it was believed, would 
involve the undertaking of surveys and studies at the 
national, tegional and international levels over a period 
of some two years. Those special studies and surveys 
would provide, at'a.nrlnimumcost, with. a minimum effort 
and in a minimUlll time, a much-needed opportunity for 
analysing and clarifying essential policy issues as well as 
for analysing and clarifying. branch by branch. and 
country by country the. technical and economical prob­
lems .. ·involved.· in :the industrialization of developing 
countries. Such·an effort would be an essential and useful 
basis for future programmes of industrialization, · for 
co-.operative activities. at the regional and international 
levels and. for .establishing on a solid foundation the 
programme of the United Nations inthe field of industry. 

6. lti it~ seconcJ resolution (resolution 2 (IV)) (see E/3869, 
para. 160}, the Co:tiunittee had recommended the Coun­
cil to request the Secretary-General to make any necessary 
c~anges in. organization anit procedures required in order 
~o enable the Centre to carey out a dynamic programme of 
a~~vities in-xglving a number of.specified. principles and 
functions. The C9~ttee had bee;n given a break-down 

.. Qf,:tqe .cost of implementing the resolQtion, which was 
.estill'ated at. $1;100,000 per annum. The Secretary­
.General hacJ indicated that if th~ Council adopted draft 
f~$olution 1 submitted. to it by the Committee, he would 
dri!W' TAC's attention to the programme proposals it 
co,:ttained, seek TAC's advice on the extent to which 
·f~g~lar bu~get . provisions for . technical. programmes 
could be applied to industrial development' activities and 
'~lJJ>sequently pr,epare revised estimates fQr the 1965 
bu_dget. The provisional budgetary estimates for 1965 
took those financial require~ents into account, but only 
in a .p~rtial manner. . , 

7, •. Vnder the . proposed programme . of activities, the 
,C~tttre would haye the role of an. activating and catalytic 
'~gent~ centrally doncemed -yvith · indu.stJ;ial. development 
'policy and over-all progress 1n the field ofhidustrialization, 
ind capable of promoting appropriate arrangements by 
the developing and advanced countries with a view to . 
meeting the opportunities and needs of industrialization ' · 
.through the availability ofadequate facilities and services. 

. ~ Pan¢ls·of scientists' and -technical 'specialists ()f recognized 
standing in various sectors of industry. would be estab­
lished to advise the Centre by QOrrespondence on the 
different aspects of its activities,. and ad · hoq_ working 
groups of high-level experts would be established to deal 
with some specific technical subjects upon which they 
would submit reports to the Committee for Industrial 
Development. The provision of a more adequate service 
of technical and nndustrial documentation was . also 
recommended. The . Centre would be required to :assist 
the developing countries. jn .establishing adequate. tech· 
nical information services. Furthermore, the undertaking 
of a periodic world industrial development . survey to 
provide a review and assessment of .the developing coun­
tries' industrialization programmes a11d progress was 
.recommended. The Centre would also be required to 
establish close contacts with the advanced industrial 
countries with a view to directing their activities towards 
the industrialization of the developing countries. He had 
visited several industrialized countries in Europe during 
the last few months and .. had . found the respo!lsible 
authorities in those countries interested iri and ready to 
support the activities of the. United Nations in the field 
of industrial development as outlined in the Committee's 
resolutions. 

8. In its third resolution (resolution 3 (IV)) (ibid.), 
adopted by a majority vote, the Connnittee had recom­
mended the Council to recognize that there was an urgent 
need for the establishment of a specialized agency for 
industrial development wit~n the framework. of the 
United Nations. The ACC bad indicated that it. would 
follow with interest developments regardipg the establish­
ment of a specialized agency for industrial development 
(B/3886, para. 89). The United Nations Conference 'on 
Trade and Development had also considered the possi~ 
bility of establishing a specialized ·agency for industry, 
and had enumerated in its. recominendation on the supject 
the functions of such· an organization. If draft resolution 
II was adopted, the Secretary-General would be called 
upon to prepare a study on ·the scope, structure and 
functjons of the. agency, including draft statu~e~. and 
information on the steps required to bring such an orga· 
nization into operation, taking into account the views 
expressed by the Committee on Industrial Development, 
the Conference on Trade and Development and the 
Council. That study would be oubmitted to the General 
Assembly at its nineteenth session. 

9. Those three 'resolutions fully··refiected the views and · 
opinions of the membets of the Committee with regard 
to . programmes of work in the field of industrialization 
and with regard to the United Nations· machinery in the 
field of industrial development. The Centre fo;r Industdal 
Development' would welcome the adopti'on · of·· draft 
resolutions I and II, which ~ould provide general policy 
guidance for its work within the United Nations family 
of organizations. A majority of members of the Com· 
mittee had approved ·of all three resolutions, while some 
had had reservations co'ncerhlng one, but had approved 
the other two. The United Nations Secretariat had already 
st&:rted considering in detail the requirements for the 
implementation of the resolutions. 



1340th meeting- 3 August 1964 181 

10. ·It was essential that effectiVe co-operation be main­
tained and developed within the United Nations family 
of organizations· in the field of industrial development so 
as to l!.Void unnecessary duplication and to promote more 
effective programmes. To that:end, the Centre· was re .. 
quired to follc;w ·closely the activities of the various 
organi:zations . in fields bearing on ind~strialization, 
undertake with them joint projects and 'make arrange­
ments for. adequate. reporting. about such activities to the 
Committee · for Industrial Development . and to the 
Coun~il .. In that connexion, ·the ACC had obs~rved in 
paragraph 87 of its most recent report (E/3'386 . and 
CorrJ and Add. 1) that the Centre for Industrial De­
velopment would have to devote adequate resources to 
developing working contacts. with the agencies active in 
the fields related . to industrial deve1.opment, and· that it 
would welcome the adoption of measures which would 
enable the . Centre to carry out its responsibilities in that 
respect. The Commissioner for Industrial Development 
was required in paragraph 88 to consult with other 
agencies With a view to submitting, if appropriate, con­
crete proposals .with regard to the .present machinery of 
periodic inter-agency meetings. Although that machinery 
had served ~. useful purpose, it .was thought that the time 
might riow have come ~o give it a more formal s~atus. 

11. On the basis ·of initial contacts he had been able to 
establish durirg the past few weeks with some of the 
specialized agencies,· he was· convinced that further pro­
gress could be made in securing co-operation in the 
activities relating to industry. The Director-General of 
UNESCO had seconded a staff member to work. in the 
Centre for a period of six months, and close co-operation 
was envisaged with the· ILO. Useful discussions were 
being held with· the Special Fund administration con• 
cerning new forms of industrial projects most suited to the 
requirements of the developing countries. Some new ideas 
were under consideration with regard to the utilization of 
the services of senior industry consultants in the field of 
technical assistance jointly with more junior resident 
experts. The Centre would be r~ady to second .its staff 
lind advisers, if requested, to help in the establishment and 
review of country and regional industrial activities under 
the different aid programmes. It had maintained close 
co-operation with the regional . economic commissions 
both in connexion with .current activities and in the 
studies concerning the regional and . internatio1tal sym­
posia. Exchanges of staff members and advisers !)etween 
the Centr~ ~nd the. regional economic comnlissions had 
taken place and might develop .further. in the future. 
Welcome support had been given 'to that· policy by the 
executive secretaries of the· regional economic com­
missions. 

~2. The proposed new machinery for trade would natu­
rally give dse ~to some· problems ot ·co-ordination with 
the exi~ting or proposed machinery for Industry. It might 
be worth considering whether in some cases the existing 
and the proposed machinery could be adapteCI so as to 
~erve · better.·· a common cause and maintain effective 
action~· · 

13. During the past year the Centre had , co-operated 
closely, through the Sub·Collllilittee on Education and 

Training ·of the ACC, in preparing the report on the train .. 
ing of national technical personnel for accelerated indus. 
trialization of developing countries. The report explored 
problems relating to the surveying of requirements of 
technical personnel for industrfa1ization, and the needs in 
terms, ·of volume and type· of trainiilg, as well· as· the 
expenditure and physical facilities involved. It- appeared 
that lack of data had been a major ~obstac~e' in fully 
assessing the efforts made by·tlie developing· countries in 
training their technical personnel and· by the advanced 
countries · in providing training facilities. Although the 
report contained some valuable· information. and could 
be commended as a co-operative undertaking, it had ·not 
fully exhausted the subject. A study, within· an appro­
priate framework, of the practical prol;>lems posed by the 
large-scale training requirements 'qf the developing· coun­
tries was Clearly warranted. · · · · · · 

,,. 

14. It was desirable that the Centre for Industrial Devel; 
opment should establish closer ,cont~cts with th~ nati()nal, 
regional and international bodies active . in the field of 
industrialization, both in the dev¢loping' and the indus­
trialized countries. Such bodies, whether private, public 
or· intergovernmental, accumulated· through their normal 
activities a wealth of experience and knowledge in indus­
trial matters. He was sure that in many cases tliey would 
be pleased to make th~ir· experience' available;·to the 
United Natic;ns. Furthermore; he had reason to believe 
that it might be possible to invite, such- Hodies to contri­
bute to the studies and activities of the· United Nations. 
The Committee for Industrial Development recolD.lll,ended 
t.hat such con.tacts. be m~de, but it w~s feJt __ that much' of 
the initial. action req~ked for that. putpose would best b~ 
realized through the proposed regional and international 
industrial symposia. The co~tact~ could <later be . main· 
tained and. develop~d through the programme of tech~· 
nological information, panels of correspondent advisers, 
ad hoc groups on special problems, and~ above all, through 
the system of country reporting-and the World lndusttial 
Development .Survey.·· V/ith better contacts, there would 
be ample opportunity for co-ordination and co-.operation 
between the work of the Centre for- Industrial De.velop~ 
ment and .. relevant .national, bUat.eral and multilateral 
activities •. 

lS. He sincerely hope"d that through the impienientation 
of the resolutions approved by the Contmittee for Indus: 
trial Development and with the gwdance which would be 
obtained from the discussions in and·action taken by the 
Council and the General Assembly, it would be possible 
to evolve gradually a set of :activities and ptocedurea pf 
action for the programme of industrialization ·.which 
would· be both: re;dlstic and imaginative. A~tivities' ·and 
procedures woUld;_ have t.o ;.1)~ realistic if they were to lcra<:l 
to the most effective utilizat1on of the !itvailable reso.urces 
in staff and funds in spite ofthediversity of opinjc>ns.:and 
the difficulties which a~rued-' from the comp1ex ~at!lre of 
in4ustry• At the same .time, .th~y would have to {')e U;J;lagil' 
native so that current .activities could, be conducted with 
a flexibility that would create an adequate basis.forfurther 
expansion as and when deemed advisablf';. · , ·. · 

t .. :t' ' . 

16~. Mr. PATI~O (Colombia) recalled that it ,was only 
~ently that priority had been given to industrial de.velol)• 



",,,., ..... , .............. """'-·"~---···-------·~--------~.......,..,.,~~------~-

182 Economic and· Social Council- Thirty~seventh session 

ment. Five· years ago, neither the Committee for Industrial 
Development nor the Centre for Industrial Development 
was in existence; the office of United Nations Commis­
sioner for Industrial Development had been· created only 
two. years· previously. The comparative lateness with 
~hich ~h~ U~ted Nations had begun to play a part iri 
mdustnalizat10n was due to the fact that the international 
community had only recently become aware of its respon­
sibilities in the matter of economic development. How­
ever, the acceptance of its role by the United Nations 
was now very definite and had been made manifest in 
recent decisions of the Council and the General Assembly 
and in the various actions by the Secretariat, the Special 
Fund and EPTA. 

17. The documents which had been submitted to the 
Council, and the excellent introductory statement of the 
Commissioner for Industrial Development made it clear 
that the interest of the United Nations in industrialization 
wo~ld not be transient, but constant and growing. 

' ' 
18. H~s delegation· would state its views in the Economic 
Committee on the various questions raised in the docu­
ments before the Council, but wished to refer at that stage 
to the two .draft resolutions submitted to the Couqcil by 
the Committee on Industrial Development on the subject 
of United Nations machinery in the field of industrial 
development. Co~sistent with its attitude in that Com­
mittee, the Colombian delegation woul.i support both 
draft resolutions. 

19. The purpose. of draft resolution I was to strengthen con­
siderably th~ Centre for Industrial Development, an objec­
tive which would be welcomed by all the developing coun­
tries. In that connexion, he paid a tribute to the United 
States delegation which had sponsored the draft that had 
led to the unanimous adoption of that text by the Com­
mittee for Industrial Development. 

~0. Unfortunately, draft resolution II relating to the need 
to establish a specialized agency for industrial develop­
ment hat!. not met with· the same unanimous support in 
~he Colllmittee. His delegation, for its part, had invariably 
supported the setting up of such a specialized agency, 
and was glad to note that the majority of the members of 
the Committee for Industrial Development shared its 
views. It also noted with gratification the adoption by the 
Un!ted Nations Conference on Trade and Development 
of Its recommendation on the same subject by a majority 
of.81.votes to 23, with 8 abstentions •. 

~t. Ire would not repeat the arguments in favou~ of 
~etting ltp s~ch a specialized agency, since those argu­
ments were well known to the Council, but asked those 
\vho .. oppos~d ·.it to state their· objections. So far, no 
g~rau~ne ~rguments had br.en ·put fonvard; it had merely 
been ·asserted that United Nations activities in the 
indus~rial field should ·be carried out through the Secre~ 
tar;i~t · and that thu • establishment of a new body would 
contribute to an undesirable proliferation of interna-
tional ayencies. . 

22. That approach ignored the magnitude of the task 
facing the United Nations iil the industrial :field. The 
·Centre-.for .ltldustrial Development represented a step in 

the right direction, but its possibilities were subject to 
limitations which a specialized agency would not expe­
rience. No one would claim that an agricultural develop .. 
ment centre, or a public health development centre 
within the framework of the Secretariat, could replac~ 
FAO or WHO, for example. 

23. While his delegation supported (,.~.e strengthening of 
the Centre, it was strongly in favour of establishing a new 
specialized agency without which the United Nations 
could not expect to carry out activities comparable to the 
many others which it already performed in the economic 
and social spheres and those it would soon begin to per­
form with regard to international trade. 

24. Nor was there any validity in the assertion reg~rding 
the proliferation of international agencies. The number of 
such agencies could clearly not be held to be excessive 
until all the exigencies of world co-operation had been 
met. It was not the desire to avoid the proliferation of 
agencies but rather the failure to recognize fully the 
United Nations responsibilities in the matter which lay 
behind the opposition to the establishment of a spe-
cialized agency. · 

25. In fact, the controversy went much deeper than a mere 
dispute over institutional machinery. It reflected an 
opposition between those who urged that international 
co-operation should carry out its mission fully iu the 
contemporary world, and those who feared the advent 
of comprehensive co-operation for economic develop­
ment. An idealistic view of world solidarity clashed with 
budgetary considerations, and it was surprising to find 
a parsimonious attitude adopted with regard to economic 
development by countries which had in other cases given 
such admirable examples of high-minded generosity. 

26. The eonsent of the major Western Powers was un­
doubtedly necessary to set up a new specialized agency. 
The developing countries were neither able nor willing to 
force the hand.ofthose Powers with their votes and must 
endeavour to convince them. However, since thfl represen­
tatives of the wealthy countries of the ~Vest, who had 
heard those of the developing countries for so many years 
on that subject, had not shown any r,igns of comprehen­
sion, notwithstanding the justice of the cause .. he failed to 
see how it \V ld be possible to obtain the desired objec­
tive by mea of a propaganda effort. It was a matter of 
deep conc:etn to his delegation that those co~ntries whose 
power conferred upon them special responsibilities in the 
matter should continue to oppose a proposul e;f such 
great imp.ortance, which his delegation would continue 
to support wholeheartedly. 

27. Mr. SEN (World Federation of Trade Unions), 
speaking at the. invitation of the Presiden.t, said that 
WFTU had for many years been stressing, the fact that 
industrialization was the key to economic development, 
the primary condition for economic and social progress. 
The developed countries, with a few exceptions, had all 
become deyeloped by industrializing. The conclusion was 
so evident that it would not need to· be stated, were it not 
for the fact that the primary importance of industrializa­
tion in development had so often been ignored or denied. 
Unfortunately, the ·special interests which,opposed. the 



1340th meeting' ...... 3 August 1964 · ... ·' .. 
--------------------------------·----------------~---------~------·-----------------

industrialization of·· developing .countries still exerted 
considerable influence Qn. the policy· of· .international 
bodies. In. WFTU's opinion, the line of division, of con .. 
tradiction and of possible conflict, was not j between 
North and South, but between exploiters andc exploited, 
between the · powerful interests in certain , develop.ed 
capitalist countries which wished to retain their pri.,­
vileged position in: international economic relations and 
those who wished to do away with those privileges ·and 
establish relations based on equality and mutual advan .. 
tage. The industrialization of.~eveloping countries would 
benefit the peoples of all countries by raising world pro .. 
duction,. spreading the benefits of science and te.chriology 
and bringing, vast new forces into the effort to achieve 
further scientific and technical advances for .the advan­
tage of humanity as a )Vhole. The workers in .the developed 
capitalist countries, together :With the peoples or ·socialist 
and developing countries, had every interest ·in working 
for that aim. · · · · · · · · ·. · 

' ' ' 

28. The backward areas of the world had been, for th(.. 
most part, the traditionally colonial or semi-colonial 
regions,. which had been exploited as sources of cheap 
r.aw materials and foodstuffs and as spheres of investment. 
1 hat had been the main reaso ... for their backwardness. 
!r1any of these c~untries, on ga1ning their independence, 
faced considerable difficulties in their efforts for inde­
pendent national development because of their economic 
weakness, which left them subject to various degrees of 
economic. pressure. Although some of these countries 
had begun to lay the foundations of'key industries, their 
total industrial production still remained too small to 
have a:~y 'significant effect ·on their economies. That was: 
4 ·orne· out by the fact that the ·share of manufactures in 
the total production of developing countlies still amounted 
to barely :1 per cent. · 

~9. That lack of industrialization in the developing coun­
tries ·meant that they were completely dependent. on 
imports to · satjsfy most of their needs for manufactured 
goods, whether for consJJmption or equipment. Becaus~ 
of that dependence~ they· had been. exploited in tL.~ so­
called free world markets, and the tenns of trade. ·were 
moving consistently against them. Furthermore, market 
manoeuvres led to drastic .fluctuations which particularly 
affected countries dependent on one or two primary 
exports. The foreign monopolies which dominated a 
great dea1 of their trade took advantage of their weak 
economic situation to depress the prices of raw materials 
and to sell manufactured goods at inflated prices. 

30. The best way fo diversify the ~economies of th¢ 
developing countries and eliminate , the present. jp.eCJ.ili~ 
table. division· of labour ·was to build an adequate ~ndus­
frial base. At the same time he did not wish to minimize 
the ifupo~tq,nce of the development of agriculture into a 
modern sector. of the economy able to serve the needs of 
society' and it must' be remembered that almost two­
thirds·. of the population of the developing countries still 
depended .. on, ·agriculture. But industrial development 
itself stimulated the pressure for reJ.dical agrarian reform, 
while industry had, as one of its. main functions, .the pro­
vision of the necessary equipment, chemical products, 
etc.,. which had to be applied in modern agriculture. On 

the rther hand, far-teachip.g agradan reform ~ould ... help 
to promote . indu.&triali?ation · and to Jlqcutnql~t~ tQ.e 
necessa.r.y r:esources fo:r inYe.stme11t .. Jf tb~· condition.& of 
the ·peasantry we,-e improved, tbe,·home market.coulc;ll:le 
expanded., and industry· a~sured p~. tb,~ ~aw m~teri,als it 
needed~ Industrialization, by creati)}g more employ~ent~ 
drew .manpow~r, from agriculture, thus reducwg· up.de~;~ 
employment ~~d stimulating more .. ,effl.c~ent u~e ·of . .111a.n,-
power. ( /;} . . . · · ··· , . ' 

31, Still" beset with problems of backwardness, the . de:. 
velopirig ·e6untries found it difficult- to ;achieve~ a fast rate 
ofin~u~t~ial·growth. A·great deal ofeffort·was now being 
d,eyoted 'to persuading the tlevtHoping'cotin~ries that the 
way out ·of their difficulties was to provide specially 
favourable· conditions for·· foreign capital. Tne WFTU 
pad often stressed . the faJ~acy and the da,nger of th.at 
policy tor ; dev;elopi~~ c?~ntries. Ibd~str~alizati~~ ~<?UJ4 
make IJ.P·l'~!J.l hea<~;way until the penetrahbn and xnfiuen~e 
of privat~ 'foreign 'capital. into. the econonues :of'~tb"e 
dtwelopipg countries hag . been . conipleteJy:~ emJe'd:~. and 
major. foreign. enterprises'~and co:nlpanie~ 'in thosfcuuri: 
tries had b~en}7J.atiop.alized~ l)omesti~ ·privat~ ca~italJJj. 
the develqpmg countries caulq pia~ .o~y a: 1i~~~~J 7ol,¢ 
in the process· of industrialization beca:use investment in 
industry,'. and, in particular,' 'heavy' i industry, . ~h;aa ;tdo 
many uncertainties to be attractive to capita11

' that was 
see~ng safe a.nd easy. profits. Private inve~to~tt (Qpn4, ~it 
more adva:qtageous to , look. to trade, to Jan,d, ,pu~cJJ.a~~ 
~nd speculation, to lJ.pmry buil<;Jipg or po~~iply, .to light 
industry. It wa~ th~ state . sector of the economv which 
cpuld really play an. effective role . in the accelerated 
deve.opment o.f industJ:ialization~ · The profits . of th~ 
public s~ctor ~could prc;>yide the· . funds, for in. vestment 
which could be direct~d tow~rr'-1s ke~ points .in ~he. eco .. 
nomy where;its· influence in ov~rcoming,.obs~acle~ ... and 
pottle-necks ·and ~ stjmulating expansion w~s~ gfea~est~ 
In that :way ·.the imp~tus ~o development could be sus .. 
tained. , . , . . ·. . . · , - · 

< 'c .: • 

32. A country had to t:ely mainly O!-J. its own resourc~s for 
industrialization, though a ·cert.ain atn?tint of external ni'd 
was necessary. It wa( the 4uty df, th~ coloriial Powets, 
which had exploited 1hose colJ;n~~e~ fgr'm~ny·, decade.s, 
to extend aid; to them. in~ ttJ.cir' st~~ggle for econotni¢ 
development. However, .. the";aid .tn11sl 'go to the ·sector 
de~i.deJi. by" the receiving country;~ .iii particular for the 
:buildlp~ ~ qf · iJ?-dustries~· · ~*cJ~~ing,. ~~eavy ·: i'~d~~~ries .. ·:.·A 
change .l~ the terms pf. traae· ~f. the · •. 9¢v,ebplttg1 

cour.td~s 
with the developed c~pita~sf 'countries, based< on pri.n~ 
ciples of ·equality, and· tnutual benefits,· and .the: natintia;. 
lization. of foreign mol?-opo1y capital· could go a iong way 
to meet· the paucity of financial resources which 'those 
countries were experiencing._ . . .. , . . . . , . . , , 

33: Trade .and I aid from the socialist. countries· were 
increasi!}gly proviqing means· for the developiii!J countries 
to obtain equipment for industrialization ott. favoutabl~ 
terms. ~urthermore, by . acqbirh.1g: a choice of partners 
in the process of economic development,· it was•becottting 
possible for the developing countries to end their former 
complete dependence ~n th~ capita~st monopolies~ ' . ·~ 

~ ' 'l .~ ' : J ~ ,, ~ ~~' ) : ·' 4 1 ' ' ; ~ ''· • : , •• f 

34. Rar~ ~ indnstrialization also: t.equit~d pat~lleh pro:­
gress in the social. sector, ncJt(tblY..PY .w:;~.y of improvement 



" z 2 

184 Economic and Social CouncQ ..... Thirty-seventh session 

in the working and living.condition·s of the workers and 
peasants. That was •not only for reasons of justice, but as 
a necessary basis for the continuation of industrializa .. 
tion. The policy of·attempting to increase. revenue by 
passing the main burden on to the working people rather 
than to the richer sections of the population only resulted 
in the decline of real wages and incomes and in the. reduc­
tion of total consumption. Heavy -taxes on lower-income 
groups, wage restraints, rising prices, etc., led to the 
restriction of the inter,1,1al mal'ket and weakened the 
sections of the population whose positive contri~ution 
w~s essential, f.or develop~~nt. The a~~ of i~dustri~liza­
tion and of epono~~c develop~ent in general would be 
def~at~d if the gains thereby. achieved did not. steadily 
return to ~he people who worked to produce . thetn. 

~5. The ·creation . of a specialized agency for.· industrial 
development should make it poss~ble for. the ' United 
Nations to give its con$tant and continued attention to the 
question and to take practical steps for assisting develop­
ing countries in industrialization in accordanc.e with their 
~ishes and needs. It was important that the international 
trade union organizations .. ~hould participa~e in the ~ctivi­
pes of such a spechilized ageucy' for that was a field which 
di~ect~y concerned' the workers and their living and work-
1~8. con(ii~ons. ·· · · · . · · 

96~ The holding· of international and regional symposia 
on indu-strial development w~uld also be useful in con .. 
centrating attention on the obstacles ·in the way of rapid 
industrialization and on effective means ·of overcoming 
those obstacles. The symposia should concentrate not so 
much on the technical problems of industrialization, but 
rather on the Ullderlying· political and economic prob­
lems. The social aspects of industrialization also deserved 
special attention in the symposia and' in the studies or 
·other work carried out under the auspices of the ·Council. 
The interregional seminar to be held at Minsk in August 
1964 might be a welcome step in that direction. ~ 

!31. The WFrU we1com~d the fact that a study o~ social 
planning in ·relation to industrial development· was to be 
submjttea. to the Committee for Industrial Development 
at its fifth sessio~~· It felt 'that subse'quently priority should 
be given to a thorough .study of such questions as the 
impact of democratic agrarian reform on industrialization~ 
tiie impact of changes in social structure and of mitionali­
zation '9n. ·the accumulation of resources for industrial 
'developm.,nt, the role of the public sector in accelerated 
industriallzation and the role of trade unionsJand similar 
organizat!~ns in the planning and implementation of 
programmes of indl:l~;~trial and social 4evelopment. 
.. ' It ' 

38. In view of the importance of those subjects and their 
direct relation to :workers' conditions, it suggested that 
t4e int~ntfttlpnal trad~ union organizations s~ould be 
jnvited to send repre~entatives. to participate. in the inter .. 
n~;~.tional and. regional symposia on industrialization a11 d 
in .. a~y .~ltltilar .. ;:activ)ties planned by the Council, 

39. :As re8J,.-d~ the question of the training or technical 
personnel for accelerated industrialization, he said. that 
in providing mtutpower for the· new industries 'in devel­
<Jping countries, the question of technical skills, voca-

tional and' specialized training of skilled industrial labour 
and :technicians· was: of vital importance. The acquisition 
of new vocational skills and knowledge was an urgent and 
difficult. task facing those countries. International assis;. 
tance in vocational training could be of great value .not 
only in · making reports and recommendations and in 
organizing tbeoretic~al courses, but in providing direct 
training. irl ·new production methods and in training 
engineering and technical personnel to run the new 
factories built in those countries and ultimately to 
develop them and to design and build their· own. Any 
activities directed towards the protection of " know­
how", the monopoly of knowledge for· private profit 
·or the· retention of production· secrets had '.no place in 
genuine assistance. 

. . 

40. Technical training was a problem of 'direct concern 
to the trade unions and their members. Consultation and 
participation of trade unions, both at international and 
national levels, were essential for the proper application 
of. all technical training programmes for workers. In 
particular, such consultation and participation. should be 
an integral part of ·all programmes of .technical and 
vocational training introduced on the advice of ·the 
United Nations and its subsidiary bodies. 

4l. The. WFTU considered that the training of women 
worl<;ers was of special importance. At present women 
suffered from serious discrimination in training, in ob .. 
taining jobs, in wages and in promotion. They were 
generally condemned to inferior unskilled work and the 
lowest level of semi-skilled jobs; access to certain skills 
was closed to them altogether. The situation of women 
workers, for historical and cultural reasons, was especially 
difficult in many dev~loping countries. The Co~cU ~bould 
therefore take and advocate special measures. to erid that 
discrimination wherever it existed. It shoulc '}nsure that 
no such discrimination was practised in any .technical aid 
and training given under the ·programmes of the United 
Nations and its subsidiary bodies. The experience. of the 
'Socialist countries. in eliminating discrimination against 
women workers could be of great help in that connexion. 
The Second \Vorld Conference on the Problems of\\1 omen 
Workers, convened by the World Federation at Bucharest 
in May 1964, had given a great· deal· of attention to that 
point. It had adopted a Charter of Economic and Social 
Demands of· Women Workers, which gave an important 
place to the elinrlnation of. discrimination ·in· technical 
training. 

42. Mr. P. BARTON (International Confederation of 
Free Trade Unions); speaking at the· invitation of the 
President, said that' ICFTU had accumulated considetable 
practical exp,erience in the field covered by iteni 12 of the 
agenda by promoting· vocational training· schentes in the 
developing. countries and l?:Y mobilizing the assistance or 
trade u:nions in industrialized c()utttries to that end. 

43. While it WP!3 now .generaUy . agreed: that vocational 
trairung must be Siven high priority :among the various 
instruments of development; there was .still a basic con· 
flict of views between those who ·understood it tc mean 
the training of. bigh .. rankifig· staffs and those Who took. it 
to meatt training at all levels of e;eonomic activity .• 



j j(i¥.1Mk4J " @ M( 6 .(1 .414Ai ¥4 $4 #F P ;;a; MRWIIQ.t;ii DJ P llii:RII\4)1U I 14 31. IR -~·-· , 

l340th meeting- 3 August 1964 185 

ICFTU favoured training at all levels, for goo( : ·1lpirical 
reasons. In Japan;. it had been decided as Ion~ ago aS: 
1S86 to introduce universal education· with the main: 
emphasis. on primary schooling; in India, on the other 
hand, little attention had been paid until .recently to 
primary education, with the result there. were too many 
uhiversities and not enough primary schools. That India 
should now have recognized ·the paramount importance 
of primary education was a practical lesson to other 
developing countries; and the success of the Japanese 
approach should. help the United Nations to avoid 
erroneous conclusions such as those reached at ,the Con~ 
ference of African States on the Development ofEducation 
in Africa, held at Addis Ababa in May 1961, where cer­
tain authorities had· urged the need to divert resources 
from primary to secondary ·education, 

44. The ICFTU's insistence on vocational training at all 
levels was based on several empirical reasons, both eco­
nomic and social in nature. In the firi)t place, one of the 
tasks of vocational training was to . develop a positive 
attitude towards labour, which was impossible unless the 
training was conducted at the lowest level. Secondly, the 
economy needed all kinds of workers,. not just profes­
sional people, and capital could only be used to the best 
advantage . if there was a prop.er equilibrium between 
intellectual and manual workers. Thlrdly, in poor coun­
tries, where the population rarely came ~nto contact with 
any aspect of modern technology, manual workers 
needed a more thorough technical training th: 1 in 
industrial countries, where the people automatically 
acquired a high degree of general technical culture. That 
need was felt most strongly at tower ·levels, where the 
worker's genetal technical "know-how " was more impor­
tant than a specialized craft. Fourthly, the use of modern 
machinery by insufficiently trained workers inevitably led 
to a high accident rate, accelerated wear and tear, and so 
forth. Fifthly, in the absence of comprehensive training 
programmes for workers the rural populations .flowing . 
into·the industrial centres would inevitably lose the tradi­
tional craft skills which could serve as a starting point for 
the .general "know-how" required in industry. Sixthly, 
vocational training mainly concentrated on the upper 
layers was bound to Widen;the gap between the elite and 
the bulk of the population, which was already one of the 
most serious obstacles to balanced development. Lastly, 
such training sooner or later entailed, as its logical coun­
terpart, various schemes which combined vocational 
training of. manual workers with' forced labour. The 
1962 report of the ILO Committee of Experts on the 
Application of·· Conventions contained rich factual 
material in that regard. · 

45, There was thus a need for a far higher proportion of 
.skilled· .\Vorkers in the developing countries, for they had 
~0. perform ~any functions which in industrialized 
.countries would be discharged by semi-skilled or even 
unskilled workers. But there was no reasort why the 
di:vision of functions among the upper levels of industrial 
manpower 1n such countries should reflect that which 
prevailed.' in ·the industry of advanced countries. On the 
contrary, a somewhat different division of Iabour.became 
,possible·: many of· the jobs which, in an industrialized 
country;, woUld, be entrusted exclusively to senior. techni· 

cians could be performed by skilled workers ..._ as had 
once been the case in· the industrialized countries them• 
selves. That was .an important point, because vocational 
training was of course less expensive for skilled workers 
than for higher-level technicians. 
46. He· did not tJgree with the idea implied in tb.e' .SeQ; 
retary-General's report on the · tl'aining of national 
technical personnel, that . tJte developing countries ·had 
reached a. stage at whlth their skilled labour and traiPirig 
requirements could be fotecast in much the Sal)l~ :way. as 
in the industrialized countries. The ICFrU was· convinced 
that such an. over .. all approach could . have indicative 
value only and could not provide a basis for a pr()gramme 
of action. The main emphasis should be on traimng con ... 
ceived.as a mass programme on the spot in each economic 
unit. Vocational training centres should' be treated to that 
effect, perhaps on ~ tripartite basis. That should go hand 
in hand with the creation of a dense network of labour 
exchanges, also run on a tripartite ·basis. Otlly by co.; 
operating closely with the. latter could the vocational 
training centres make sure that the workers· were (aught 
those skills for which there was an effective demand in 
industry. Projection and planning on the national level 
could not be .effective unless it was complemented and 
corrected by a more pragmatic approach, such. as could 
be expected from institutions operating in direct oontact 
with the actual production process. Co-operatioJ;t be-; 
tween labour exchanges and vocational training ~ntres 
could also . help to solve the problems of vocationQ.l 
guidance, . : · 

47. The ICFI'U was glad to note that the idea of creating 
work opportunities was now spreading rapidly. He had 
in mind particularly the organization of small investment· 
work on a large scale, financed mainly by the allocation 
of food surpluses from the industtlalized countries, 
recently undertaken in connexion with the Free4om from 
Hunger Campaign, the ICFl'U had some .experience in. 
that field, especially in the use of voluntary labour to .build 
vocation& training premises which were then used.by.tb~ 
builders for the acquisition of industrial skills. Experien~ 
had shown. that such operations could· be condqcted at 
very low cost, provided they were approached on a 
decentralized basis. 

48. He had expected that the Secretary-General~s report 
would give some iildication of the over-all scope of the 
problem, and in particular that it. would· have drawn 
conclusions from studies like that undertaken at Cairo 
University··:on the relation ·between· funds required' for 
adequate training and over-all investment. There wero 
other disturbing omis&ioqs: for instance, it ha4 iQitially , 
been decided that. cc·tecbnical . personnel of the lnt~r- . 
mediate ·and high~r levels " shoulci cover not only +rote­
nten~ ·engineers and management, but ,also skilled WQrk:ers; 
But chapters .l.~d 4 (see E/3901/Add.l) eontaitie(\ J)i:? 
information whatever on skilled workers, ! being exelu~ 
sively devoted to engin~ers . and scientists. He Jto).)e4. tltat 
th~ Secretariat would fill that gap in f~ttire. ' · , 

49~ ·The difficulties encountered in oft'ering soine: global , 
indication of training requirements· and the possible 
costs motivated the: recommendation,, in paragraph 73 
(ibid;.),' tbat the developing countries: shoUld endeavoutte . . 



186 Economic and Sdcial Councll ......,. .Thirty-seventh session 

train economists and statisticians and' to set up their own 
planning ·organization units specializing in manpower 
analysis and forecasting. While the developing countries 
would have to face such. tasks in ten years or so, the 
comprehensive approach should for the time being be 
confined to international bodies, and the resources 
ay~ilable for training purposes should be devoted to the 
pet~onnel actually needed in industry.' There was certainly 
no· dap.g~r of over-tr~ining resulting from a failure to 
forecast needs, since their magnitude could hardly be 
over-estimated. · · .. " 

50. Sit Ke_jth UNWIN (United Kingdom) said that, since 
the deb~te · on industrial development at the Council's 
th}riy-:sixth session, that subject had been exhaustively 
ex~minea in various other United Nations bodies; as a 
resUlt, thei"e .was now even wider awareness of the needs 
and problems involved. A seminar devoted to the indus­
trialization problems of less developed countries would 
shortly be held at Cambridge University, and he hoped 
that the Commissioner for Industrial Development would 
be ab~e'to attend. 

5L There now seemed to be general agreement on a 
number. of poin~s. Firstly, there was general recognition 
of the cruci~ role which industrialization must play in 
the middle sta~ges ·Of a country's advance towards achiev­
ing J. self-:-sustaining rate of growth. Secondly, . it was 
recognized· that industrialization and diversification of 
the ~eonomy must be part of balanced over-all develop­
ment. Thirdly, there was now a general disposition to 
ayoid discussing what might be ·called the ideology of the 
subject; and the proper methods for promoting industrial 
d~velopment, it being now. agreed that each country must 
work o.ut its own road to industrial salvation. 

52. The practical question was ho"" the .United Nations 
co~ld supply more· effective assistance to the developing 
~ountries ·in tackling the difficult problems of industrial 
development. ·The establishment . of a new specialized 
agency was regarded . by many as the only method by 
which progress could be made, · while· unwillingness to 
accept that idea was interpreted as opposition to the very 
process of ·industrialization. His country had. opposed 
the creation of a new agency in the conviction tliat it was 
neither the quickest nor the most effective way of ensuring 
that the United Nations provided mote assistance in the 
industrial field. There were other ways of achieving· that . 
object, and his Government was prepared to contribute 
its fair share of the additional resources that. might be 
n~eded fot the purpose. 

;S.:t '!he :pr!ncipal United Nations agencies assi~ii~~)ri 
the. JndustrJal development field were, and should. con.:. 
tinu~. tq. be, the' IBRD. group of institutions. The·"IBRD, 
~:01 ~d IFC were all making a major ~ontribu~on to 
Jrtdustnal devel9pment. As the second largest contnbutor ~ 
to· the IBRD. group, the United ·Kingdom was making a 
major effort. tp. assist industrial development, and his 
Government was determined to go on supporting those 
Vall)able institutions. Other parts of the United Nations 
family· were contributing substantially to the technical 
assistance. required in the pre-investment stages of sur• 
veying, project: formulation and so on. The Special Fund~ 

in particular, was making a direct contribution in the 
field of manufacturing industry. If the technical assistance 
programmes were not at present doing more in the indus­
trial field, the reason was not so much lack of means or 
machinery as the lack of suitable projects. The prepara .. 
tion of projects-in that field was co111plex, and many of the 
countries which needed industrial projects were precisely 
those which were least equipped to formulate them. What 
was needed, therefore, was more practical assistance in 
the early stages of project preparation. 

~ ' I 

54. lt was in that type of activity that the Centre. for 
Industrial Devel<?pment could make a valuablv contri· 
bution. He paid a tribute to those responsible for getting 
the Centre under way and expressed the view that the 
present Commissioner should now be encouraged to 
expand his activities and should be s.upplied with addi­
tional staff and resources where necessary. In the Com­
mittee for Industrial Development, and later in · the 
United Nations Conference on Trade and Development, 
proposals had been put forward by the United States 
of 'America, his own country ·and others indicating how 
the Centre should develop; his delegation still regarded 
those proposals· as a basis for a 'rapid and effective expart· 
sion of United Nations activities in the industrial field. 
He would particularly like to see a strengthening of the 
promotional activity of the Centre for the stimulus it could 
provide in helping countries to prepare projects for the 
Special Fund and other institutions. In that process 
resources need not· be diverted from other important 
activities. · · 

55. The leader of ·his delegation had already referred to 
the need for co-ordination between the Committee for 
Industrial Development and the Committee on Manufac· 
tures which was proposed as a subordinate body to the 
Trade and Development Board (see E/CONFA6/l39, 
annex A.V.I). There should be no difficulty in defining 
the relative roles of. those. two bodies: the former should 
concentrate on the promotion of industry,. including 
manufacturing industry, while the latter should concen· 
trate on the· problems of. international trade in· manU.· 
factured goods. While-there might be some fields in which 
the interests of the two bodies would tend· to overlap, 
with reasonable self-restraint on the part of both Com· 
mittees there need .. be no real conflict. What would be 
needed above all would be co-ordination of the activities 
of the Committees themselves as well. as· of the brr.tnches 
of the Secretariat which served them• If the same sort of 
practical . relation could be maintained between · the 
different .parts of the ·Secretariat .and the new branch as 
had been maintained between the existing sections, there 
shoul~ be no serious difficulty. With regard to the. Sec­
retary-Qeneral's idea that. certain subbrdinate bodies 
might ~e so organized as to serve two rilaste:fs,. his. d~le· 
gation was J;).ot yet convim:ed that .that wo'uld be a sat~s­
factory 'solution in the pr•~sent instance;· tliere weie two 
di~tinct purposes to be served, and it might well be 
necessary to maintain two separate Committees· .served 
by' different sections of the Secretariat working ·C?losely 
to~ethe~. . : · · . 
56., As · regards the proposal to .hold an international 
symposium on industrial development ana to stage in 



p; g t & 1. 4 . _; 4i i t Q iiZ&l£4 lliPA $$ ¥1442 $$ $ $4&2 U 4 UM JPI 444 tAli IIQYSA 4 "~·•·-~e. , "~ .. · ,_ ·~" · :-r,' .--~~--------------~~--~~~--~~~------------·-.. ·-~-.. -... ·--···-~··~~~~ 
o-r· " .~· · ~ · .1340th meeting_. 3 August. 1964 187 

advance a series of regional and ·sub-regional symposia 
(see E/3921, para. 1), his Government favoured that pro· 
ject and hoped that the. symposia woud bring together 
those with industrial e.xperi~nce and those seeking it, into 
relatively small ·groups, devoted to clearly defined sub­
jects. From meetings of that type co~ld accrue practical 
and precise guidance as to the methods and the kind of 
assistance that the United· Nations should ·give to de­
veloping countries in the industrial field. However, as 
had been pointed out by the Co:tntnissioner for Industrial 
Development in his introductory statement, that process 
involved the active and positive participation of the de­
veloping countries themselves. 

57. It would be particularly valuable for each developing 
country participating in the symposium to undertake a 
preparatory survey of its own industrial achievements, 
its needs and potentialities, adding perhaps a statement of 
the major internal obstacles to further industrialization 
and the extent to which those obstacles. might be sur· 
mounted with the aid of a particular international agency 
or of developed countries. 

58. It might thus be possible to bring out the extent to 
which industrialization depended on political, social and 
cultural changes. The national surveys could also cover 
such basic economic data as population, communications, 
agriculture, and national per capita income and its rate 
of growth. He hoped that the symposia would help to 
identify more precisely the practical problems facing the 
developing countries as they became industrialized, and 
that they would make an important contribution towards 
the formulation of solutions. In particular, there should 
be full discussion of the scope for sub-regional co-opera­
tion in setting up large-scale industry. In many developing 
countries, the small size of the market was a hindrance to 
the development of efficient self-Bupporting industry, and 
sub-regional co-operation might therefore be essential. 
The point was one which had r~ceived considerable atten­
tion from the regional economic commissions, and the 
recent industrial survey missions in east and west Africa 
provided excellent eRamples of the practical help which 
could be given towards finding regional solutions. 

59. His delegation also believed that the symposium 
could profitably examine the scope for promoting the 
technical development of indigenous industries and the 
use that could be made of research organizations in other 
countries. The problems involved in making use of 
technical information brought in by firms which set up 
factories in developing countries could also be reviewed. 
A practical approach along those lines would amply 
repay the substantial effort which would be necessary to 
set the symposia in motion. 

60. His country was ready to contribute bilaterally and 
multilaterally, both in expertise and .in the form of 
contributions to an enlarged budget, to ensure that help 
could be practically, effectively and productively provided 
in the places where it was most needed. 

61. Mr. VANDR!ES (International Labour Organisa­
tion) said that the exttemely interesting debate which had 
taken"plae(: showed thM thE:: common effort which .had 

gone into the organization :of the Industrial Development 
Centre had.~ produced . useful results. The ILO, like the 
other bodies which had co-operated in tho matter, had ;the 
feeling that it had participated in ·a very worthwhile 
effort. 

62. He wished to give the assurance~ on behalf of ·his 
organization, that that co-operation would be continued, 
and he expressed the hope that it would be· possible to 
achieve, by means of continued joint efforts, the objective.s 
which would be d~fined by the Council. 

63. Since the Commissioner for Industrial Development 
had stated that it was intended to give a wide distribution 
to the Secretary-General's report on training of national 
technical personnel, he indicated that the ILO wished 
certain corrections and adjustments of detail to be intro­
duced into that report before it was produced in final form 
fo~ circulation to Governments. He would submit to the 
President a list of the adjustments and corrections in 
question. 

64. Mr. SHOED (United Nations Educational, Scientific 
and Cultural Organization) said that the Secretary­
General's report clearly showed the great importance and 
magnitude of the problem of the training of national 
technical personnel. General Assembly resolution 1824 
(XVII) ,had given clear directives for the report, by calling 
for estimates of the requirements for such training and of 
the available possibilities in the matter, for information 
concerning methods of training and progress in training 
personnel from the developing countries in the industrially 
developed countries and - most important of all - for 
proposals and recommendations. 

65. The primary reports of the two inter-secretariat 
working parties on technical education and vocational 
education and on manpower assessment and educational 
planning had called .for a considerable volume of work 
in that diversified field within the terms of reference of 
that resolution. 

66. As indicated in the Secretary-General's report, careful 
attention should be given to the basic problem of adapting 
educational and training institutions in developing coun­
tries to meet their specific needs of development, and 
UNESCO had devoted considerable efforts, both within 
its secretariat and in the inter-secretariat working parties, 
to shedding ~.:,me light on that subject, which lay at the 
root of self-sustained economic development. 

67. The information and data gathered by the UNESCO 
secretariat had already proved of immense value and 
would be of greater value still when the Secretary­
General's proposals and recommendations were imple-· 
mented. General Assembly resolution 1824 (XVII) men­
tioned t!1c intermediate and higher levels of technical 
personnel but did not refer specifically to scientific 
research workers. The UNESCO's experience in planning 
technological education had shown that higher· education, 
i.e., the training stage of technologists and engineers, was 
closely linked with post-graduate work, both in basic 
research and applied research. Trained scientific workers 
were as important to self•sustained development as, the 



188 Economic and Social CouncU - Thirty-seventli session ·····-············----·--~-

technicians and skilled workers had been at the initial 
stages of development. The need for highly trained per­
sonnel became more acute as a country advanced on the 
road to development. 

68. General Assembly resolution 1824 (XVII) had re­
ferred to the need for adequate facilities for scientific 
education and technical personnel; and UNESCO had 
planned and was executing some thirty Special Fund 
projects in Africa, Asia and Latin America for the 

Printed in Switzerland 

specific purpose of training personnel and disseminating ' 
scientific and technical information. 

69. The Secretary-General's report embodied so much 
material and study that it would be of advantage to : 
Governments to give it their considered attention and to 
comment on the proposals and recommendations therein • 
contained on the basis of their own experience. 

The meeting rose at 5.30 p.m. 

l 
l 

l 
·j 

~ 
~ 

16401--5eptember 1~64--.l,lsO ~ 
:t 




